WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Alvarado Adult Education Campus

September 10, 2015
Minutes

A. OPENING PROCEDURES

Al Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 3:05 PM by Chairperson Liz Block.

A.2 Roll Call

Committee Members Present: Liz Block, Valerie Cuevas, Ivette Ricco

Staff Attendees: Lisa LeBlanc, Associate Superintendent for Operations; or who was hired December
2014. Ms. Kim will be reporting directly to Ms. LeBlanc in this investigation and will be
handling the day-to-day interactions with the auditor and Ms. LeBlanc, and she will be
arranging for access to documents with the appropriate district staff.

Ms. Block clarified that while Ms. Kim reported to Ms. Gamba in her routine duties, for the
purpose of this investigation she will report only to Ms. LeBlanc.

A3 Approval of Agenda

MOTION: Ms. Ricco moved to approve the Agenda renumbering the first four
items as Item B.1 through Item B.4, consecutively. Ms. Cuevas seconded. Ms.
Block, Ms. Cuevas and Ms. Ricco voted yes, with no abstentions and no absences.
Motion carried 3-0-0-0.

A4 Approval of Minutes: August 10, 2015
Ms. Ricco corrected a typo in section A.4.

MOTION: Ms. Cuevas moved to approve the minutes of the August 10, 2015
meeting, as amended. Ms. Block seconded. Ms. Block, Ms. Cuevas and Ms. Ricco
voted yes, with no abstentions and no absences. Motion carried 3-0-0-0.

B. DISCUSSION /7 APPROVAL ITEMS

Public Comment:

Linda Lozito commented on discussion that occurred at a prior meeting regarding a rumor whether
SGI was trying to influence employees not to cooperate with the audit. Ms. Lozito located a 2013
SGI contract on the district site and referred to language on Page 29, which provided clarification
regarding SGI employees’ cooperation in such matters.



WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Meeting Minutes, September 10, 2015

Page 2

Ms. Lozito also expressed concerns regarding selecting Nigro and Nigro PC as the forensic auditor
due to a possible conflict. She added that the district can use bond proceeds to pay for the audit, an
issue that was raised at a prior meeting.

Mr. Gregg Visineau asked how information from the public is processed by the subcommittee
members at the meetings. Ms. Block provided clarification. Ms. LeBlanc referred Mr. Visineau to
Item B.2 on this agenda for further discussion.

B.1

Discuss / Approve subcommittee’s selection of forensic accountants to be selected
as “finalists” to be interviewed the week of September 14, 2015.

Committee Comment:

Ms. Block provided guidance regarding the process of selecting the forensic accounting
firm.

Ms. LeBlanc distributed a list of the names of the firms that submitted proposals.

Mr. Kawahara recommended to the subcommittee that since there will be negotiation with
these firms, it would probably not be in the best interest of the district if the firms knew
what the other firms were bidding. He added that the information could be released to the
public once they are selected. Under the public records act, since this is a contracting
situation, the subcommittee is not obligated to disclose this information at this point.

Ms. LeBlanc suggested that for the purpose of this meeting, subcommittee members refer
to costs as being higher cost or lower cost, and all subcommittee members concurred.

Ms. Block asked the subcommittee members to reveal their top choices of firms to be
interviewed and asked Mr. Panas to note the names on the white board.

Ms. Ricco provided her top five sel



WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Meeting Minutes, September 10, 2015
Page 3

for school districts, fraud investigations, and forensic accounting for K-12 schools, charters,
colleges and governmental agencies, and added they were a higher cost than some others.



WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Meeting Minutes, September 10, 2015

Page 4

Ms. LeBlanc said she had a conversation with SGI personnel, and as a follow up to the
conversation they had already sent out a directive to their staff requiring full cooperation on
the investigation.

Ms. Block inquired if that would include responding to interview questions, and Ms.
LeBlanc said yes.

Mr. Kawahara also said he received a copy of the separation agreement of Mr. Fay, and in
his opinion the nondisparagement provision would not apply to an interview request from



WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Meeting Minutes, September 10, 2015

Page 5

Ms. Cuevas asked for clarification. Ms. Ricco said the intent was not for a specific report
back to the CBOC, but for the questions to become part of the scope of the entire
investigation process.

Mr. Kawahara added that the risk assessment in Phase | is to look at risk or the possibility
of conditions that would create fraud or waste or abuse, and it would be possible to ask the
auditor to look at the questions in terms of risk assessment, but not to investigate each one
of these questions.

Ms. Block said that the CBOC is very important in monitoring the bond program and so
these items are of interest.

Mr. Kawahara said that in terms of change orders as discussed earlier, those questions
would be a huge issue in terms of risk to district.

Ms. Block said she agrees the questions would be important, but she would want them to
be part of the scope, and not cause the auditors to go into a completely different direction.
Ms. Cuevas said this is a contribution that helps the auditors do their work and she is very
comfortable with the list. She asked whether the risk assessment will answer each specific
question.

Ms Ricco said that these questions are being asked because of the allegations, and they are
not made up on their own.

Ms. Block raised a question about whether there actually was a valid SGI contract indicating
a handwritten change was made regarding termination from “terminate for convenience” to
“only at breach.”

Mr. Jungherr said it is clear the clause was amended on the floor and approved by the board
unanimously and is clearly stated in minutes.

Ms. Cuevas asked to clarify what was the expectation of the CBOC regarding outcome.



WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Meeting Minutes, September 10, 2015

Page 6

Ms. Cuevas said that evoking the privilege makes sense when it is for the benefit of the
district but there is a Catch 22 regarding disclosing information for the benefit of the
public.

Mr. Kawahara clarified that without the privilege it would put the district at a disadvantage
if you were to find a legal claim against a firm, and you would have to disclose that before
completing deliberation.

Ms. Block said the purpose of the subcommittee is to get this matter investigated and get
information uncovered. She feels that having information privileged to Mr. Kawahara’s
firm will get them closer to that goal, as the information will be coming out but it just will
not be coming out piecemeal.

Ms. Cuevas asked if we could still expect that once the investigation was completed, every
piece of information would be made public. Ms. Ricco said the final report which detailed
findings would be made public.

Ms. Cuevas said she struggle



WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Meeting Minutes, September 10, 2015
Page 7



WCCUSD Subcommittee on Clay Investigation
Meeting Minutes, September 10, 2015

Page 8

C.

Mr. Panas asked whether they have considered time on the schedule for deliberation on who
to pick, and discussion followed.

Mr. Visineau inquired about the interview process and allowing for the possibility to go back
and ask questions to the firms after their interviews are completed, and discussion followed.

It was agreed that the September 16t meeting will begin at 8:30 am, with interviews
beginning at 8:45 am to allow one hour for each interview, with a 15 minute break and 30
minute lunch break between interviews, followed by deliberation at 2:00 pm.

FUTURE MEETINGS

Cl1

Next Meeting Date



